CRE‘WI citizens for responsibility
and ethics in washington
June 15, 2016

The Honorable John A. Koskinen
Commissioner

Internal Revenue Service

1111 Constitution Ave., N.W.
Washington, DC 20224

By electronic mail (IRS.Commissioner@IRS.gov) and First Class mail

Re: Complaint against Arizona Future Fund

Dear Commissioner Koskinen:

Citizens for Responsibility and Ethics in Washington (“CREW”) respectfully requests the
Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) investigate whether the Arizona Future Fund (“AFF”), a non-
profit organization exempt from taxation pursuant to section 501(c)(4) of the Internal Revenue
Code (“Code”), and its general counsel, William Canfield, violated federal law by falsely
representing AFF spent no money on political activity in 2014.) CREW further requests the IRS
investigate whether AFF was operated primarily to influence political campaigns in violation of
the Code.

In the weeks before the 2014 Arizona Republican primary for governor, AFF ran
television, newspaper, digital, and billboard advertisements promoting Mesa Mayor Scott
Smith’s candidacy, saying he was a “better choice” than his rivals and that “Governor Scott
Smith sounds just right.” After complaints were filed with Arizona campaign finance authorities
alleging AFF failed to report its spending on the ads, AFF and Mr. Canfield acknowledged in a
settlement that the advertisements were independent expenditures with no reasonable meaning
other than to advocate for Mayor Smith’s election. Nevertheless, AFF told the IRS it did not
participate in any political activity in 2014, and thus appears to have made false statements.

In addition, AFF admitted it spent $315,575 on these advertisements, which accounts for
more than 66% of its total spending in 2014. As a result, politics appears to have been AFF’s
primary activity.

Following the pattern of another group advised by Mr. Canfield that also failed to
disclose its political spending, made false representations to the government, and was operated
primarily to influence political campaigns, AFF simply went out of business at the end of 2014,
claiming that it had achieved its social welfare purposes.

! CREW submits this letter in lieu of Form 13909; a copy is being sent to the Dallas office.
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Arizona Future Fund’s Political Activity

AFF was a non-profit unincorporated association established in 2014 in Washington,
D.C.? Lee Cowen was its exccutive director and treasurer, and Mr. Canfield was its general
counsel.’ In addition to his role with AFF, Mr. Canficld is a “nationally recognized GOP
election and political attorney” who has twice been chair of the ABA’s Standing Committee on
Election Law.* Mr. Canfield has extensive experience filing Form 990 tax returns.’

Less than two weeks before the August 26, 2014 Arizona Republican gubernatorial
primary, AFF placed newspaper advertisements in substance urging Arizonans to vote for Mesa
Mayor Scott Smith.° Over a photo of Mr. Smith, the ad said Mr. Smith “brought better jobs,
schools and roads as Mayor. - Just what we need in a governor.”” “On August 26,” the ad
continued, “Arizona Republicans can nominate for governor the candidate who has a proven
record of accomplished leadership and real plans for the future,” and concluded by saying

“Arizona needs a governor to lead not bicker.”® The ad did not mention any candidate other than
Mr. Smith.

At around the same time, AFF’s Facebook page also advocated voting for Mr. Smith. On
August 11, 2014, AFF posted a Facebook entry that said:

On August 26, Arizona voters will go to the polls to elect the next Republican
nominee for Governor — and the stakes couldn’t be any higher.

That’s why Republicans and Independents agree: Arizona needs Scott Smith. As
Mayor, Scott Smith has balanced budgets, cut taxes and created jobs. Imagine
what he can do for Arizona.’

% Arizona Future Fund 2014 Form 990-EZ, at 1 (attached as Exhibit A); Nonprofit Locator, Arizona Future Fund
(listing ruling date as June 1, 2014), available at hitpsi/inenprofiiocator.org/organizations/de/washington/
464739838-arizona-future-fund.

* Arizona Future Fund 2014 Form 990-EZ, Part IV.

* Twitter page, William B. Canfield, available at https://twitter.com/willsiii,

5 See, e.g., Commission on Hope, Growth and Opportunity, 2010 Form 990 (signed by Mr. Canfield); Coalition for
Mortgage Security, 2014 Form 990 (signed by Mr. Canfield).

6 See, e. &., Arizona Range News, Aug. 13,2014, at 5, available at Wioifaze.sparchive.com/Archive/A7ZR/
AZRO8132014P05 php; Sahuarita Sun, Aug. 13, 2014, at A6, available at http//bloximages.chicagol.vin,
{()Wﬂnu\w.cmn;’sahuaritaz@un.-:x}m./&mtcm/tncms;fas:«‘cis/v.%/ecdiiios‘;/(}_,v"';z:?/(}1153‘&{’)(}2{»65b(%ﬁi%@-&wé%?»d&
£284910619ed/53ena Tac3eblapndf.ndf. See also MUR 14-014, Arizona Future Fund, Arizona Citizens Clean
Elections Commission, Statement of Reasons of the Executive Chair, Dec. 9, 2014 (“CCEC Statement of Reasons™)
(describing similar ad in the Prescott Daily Courier) (attached as Exhibit B).

71d.

81d.

? Facebook page for Arizona Future Fund, Aug. 11, 2014 post, available at hitps:/feeww.facebook.com/
arizonafuturcfund/ and attached as Exhibit C.
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AFF also purchased Internet advertising urging voters to “take action” by “support[ing] Scott
Smith’s real leadership.””

Included in AFF’s Facebook post was a video advertisement similarly touting Mr.
Smith’s candidacy.!! The ad opens with video of two other gubernatorial candidates talking over
each other, then asserts: “There’s a better choice for Governor. Scott Smith.”'2 While showing a
photograph of Mr. Smith, the narrator lauds him, declaring that “as mayor of Mesa, Scott Smith
cut taxes, created jobs, and reduced crime.”™® The ad then asserts that “now Scott’s ready to put
the same proven government and entrepreneurial experience to work for all of Arizona,” and
concluded: “Republicans and independents agree. Governor Scott Smith sounds just right.”14
According to a news report, AFF also placed the ads on its website in August 2014.1°

AFF posted an almost identical version of the advertisement on its YouTube page on
August 20, 2014."® This ad concluded “Scott Smith sounds just right” instead of “Governor
Scott Smith sounds just right.”"” At that same point in the advertisement, however, this version
showed an image of a newspaper headline reading: “Brewer Endorses Scott Smith for
Governor.”'® As discussed below, both versions of the ad constituted political activity, as did the
newspaper ad and the Facebook post.

AFF ran a version of the television advertisement in at least the Phoenix, Tucson, and
Yuma cable and broadcast markets in the days before the primary.'

AFF later acknowledged spending $315,575 on the Smith advertisements. According to
disclosures AFF provided to the Arizona Citizens Clean Elections Commission (“CCEC”) but
not, for unknown reasons, currently posted on the Arizona Secretary of State’s campaign finance

10 1d.; see also CCEC Statement of Reasons, at 3; Complaint against Arizona Future Fund, filed with the Arizona
Secretary of State and the Arizona Citizens Clean Elections Commission, Aug. 20, 2014 (“Joint Complaint™)
(attached as Exhibit D).

! Facebook page for Arizona Future Fund, Aug. 11, 2014 post.

2

5 Yvonne Wingett Sanchez, ‘Dark Money’ Group Funds Pro-Smith Effort, Arizona Republic, Aug, 12, 2014,
available at hitp://www .azcentral.com/story/news/arizona/politics/2014/0%/1 2/dark-mo ney-group-funds-nro-smith-
/. The website has since been taken down. See www.arizonafuturefund.org.

(v youtube.com/watch2vaEx D 7Tu WHe Y Be.

16 See hiyy
7 1d.
'®Id. Brewer presumably is then-Arizona Gov. Jan Brewer.

1 See Email from Mike Liburdi to Christina Estes-Werther, Aug. 12, 2014 (“Secretary of State Complaint”)
(alleging AFF spent at least $74,247 on cable ads) (attached as Exhibit E); Complaint against Arizona Future Fund,
filed with the Arizona Citizens Clean Elections Commission, Aug. 13,2014 (“CCEC Complaint”) (attached as
Exhibit F); Invoice from KGUN, Aug. 31, 2014 ($10,475 for broadcasting ads), available at

hpsy//stations. fee.govicollect/files/3691 8/Political %20F e /2014/Non-Ca ndidate %20 ssuc % 20Ads/
Atizona%20Future %20Fund/534748/534748-1%20( 14102050894 156) pdf; Invoice from KOLD, Aug. 31, 2014
($17,556 for broadcasting ads), available at hitps://stations.fee. gov/collect/files/48663/Political %20Fi1e/2014/Non-
Candidate %201ssuc % 20Ads/AZ% 20FUTURES20FUND % 20IN VA I0A UG Te20(14106526851354) pdf.
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website, AFF spent $215,575 on television advertising, $40,000 on billboards, $32,500 on
newspaper ads, and $27,500 on website and social media advertising.*® All of the spending was
for “independent expenditures” on behalf of Mayor Smith’s campaign for governor, and all the
expenditures were made between July 28 and August 11, 2014.2!

Arizona Campaign Finance Complaints Against the Arizona Future Fund

After AFF began running its advertisements in the weeks before the primary, several
complaints regarding the ads and AFF were filed with Arizona campaign finance authorities.??
The complaints asserted AFF’s ads were expenditures made for the purpose of influencing an
election, and alleged AFF had violated Arizona law by failing to register as an independent
expenditure organization and file disclosure reports.* AFF, in filings submitted by Mr.
Canfield, initially disputed the advertisements were independent expenditures that triggered
reporting and registration requirements.”* CCEC, however, concluded there was reason to
believe AFF violated Arizona law. Specifically, CCEC explicitly found in a Statement of
Reasons that the ads “unequivocally constitute express advocacy under Arizona law and are
independent expenditures on behalf of Scott Smith” and “had no reasonable meaning other than
to advocate for the election of Smith for governor.”%

To resolve the complaints, AFF, CCEC, and the Arizona Attorney General’s Office
entered into a conciliation agreement on December 18, 2014.27 The agreement stated that AFF
“made independent expenditures and filed no reports,” and in agreeing to it AFF acknowledged
the violations set forth in the Statement of Reasons based on the fact that the ads constituted
express advocacy and had no reasonable meaning other to advocate for Mayor Smith’s
election.® AFF agreed to pay a $10,000 fine and file reports disclosing the independent
expenditures.® Mr. Canfield signed the agreement on behalf of AFF.%

2 Arizona Future Fund, Independent Expenditures, Smith Governor 2014 (attached as Exhibit G). This document
apparently was attached to an email Mr. Canfield sent to CCEC. Email from William Canfield to Sara Larsen, Dec.
23, 2014 (attached as Exhibit H).

A4

? See Secretary of State Complaint, filed Aug. 12, 2014; CCEC Complaint, filed Aug. 13, 2014; Joint Complaint,
filed Aug. 20, 2014.

BId.

* See Arizona Future Fund, Response in CCEC MUR No. 14-014, Aug. 28, 2014 (attached as Exhibit I); Arizona
Future Fund, Response in CCEC MUR No. 14-014, Nov. 17, 2014 (attached as Exhibit J).

» CCEC Statement of Reasons at 1.

8 Id., at 3-4.

27 MUR 14-014, Conciliation Agreement, Dec. 18, 2014 (attached as Exhibit K).

BId. at 1-2.

2 Id. at 2.

0 7d. at 5.
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On December 23, 2014, Mr. Canfield emailed CCEC a copy of the reports it submitted to
the Arizona Secretary of State.”’ Those reports disclosed $315,575 AFF spent on “independent
expenditures” in the “Smith Governor 2014” race.??

Arizona Future Fund’s Representations to the IRS

As a section 501(c)(4) tax-exempt organization, AFF is required to file annual Form 990
tax returns. Tax-exempt organizations engaged in any “direct or indirect political campaign
activities on behalf of or in opposition to candidates for public office” also must file a Schedule
C with their tax returns, which requires disclosure of the amount spent on “political
expenditures.”®* “Political expenditures” include all “political campaign activities” — defined as
“[a]ll activities that support or oppose candidates for elective federal, state, or local public
office.”*

On February 12, 2015, just two months after Mr. Canfield signed the conciliation
agreement acknowledging the Smith advertisements were independent expenditures and AFF
submitted disclosures detailing its spending on them, AFF filed its 2014 Form 990-EZ tax return
with the IRS.* Mr. Canfield signed the tax return under penalty of perjury.’ Despite the
conciliation agreement and the Arizona disclosures, AFF asserted on the tax return it did not
engage in any “direct or indirect political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposition to
candidates for public office.”®’ As a result, AFF did not file a Schedule C reporting the amount
it spent on political activities.

According to the tax return, AFF spent a total of $474,600 in 2014.3% The vast majority
of this spending, $432,500, paid for “public broadcast issue advertising in Arizona media
markets,”

On December 30, 2014, AFF terminated its activities and voted to notify the IRS of its
decision.** According to AFF, “the social welfare purpose for which the association was created
[was] achieved within calendar year 2014” and “no additional purpose exists as to which the
association might become engaged.”*!

31 Email from William Canfield to Sara Larsen, Dec. 23, 2014.

2 Arizona Future Fund, Independent Expenditures, Smith Governor 2014.

3 Form 990-EZ, Part V, Question 46; 2014 Instructions for Form 990-EZ, at 24; 2014 Instructions for Schedule C,
at1, 3.

# Id. at 1; 2014 Instructions for Form 990, at 64.

3 Arizona Future Fund 2014 Form 990-EZ, at 4. Mr. Canfield erroneously dated his signature on the tax return as
February 12, 2014, instead of February 12, 2015.

36 Id., at 4.

3 Id., Part V, Line 46.

BId., Part ], Line 17.

¥ Id., Part 11, Line 28.

“ Id., Schedule N, Part III and attached Resolution of the Board.

#I Arizona Future Fund, Resolution of the Board, Dec. 30, 2014. AFF, however, told CCEC it was terminating
because “there is absolutely no prospect of the Fund being able to obtain additional donations going forward” as a
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Political Activity Under Section 501(c)(4)

When an advertisement explicitly advocates the election or defeat of an individual to
public office, the expenditure unquestionably is political campaign activity.*?

Advertisements and other communications that support or oppose a candidate but stop
short of expressly advocating for or against the candidate’s election also can constitute political
campaign intervention. In Revenue Ruling 2007-41, the IRS promulgated guidance on the
distinction between issue advocacy and political campaign intervention. The IRS takes into
consideration all the facts and circumstances of a particular communication and identified the
key factors as: (1) whether the statement identifies one or more candidates; (2) whether the
statement expresses approval or disapproval for a candidate’s position; (3) whether the statement
is delivered close to an election; (4) whether the statement makes reference to voting or an
election; (5) whether the issue addressed has been raised as an issue distinguishing candidates for
an office; (6) whether the communication is part of an ongoing series of communications by the
organization on the issue that are made independent of the timing of any election; and (7)
whether the timing of the communication is related to a non-electoral event such as a scheduled
vote on specific legislation by an officeholder running in an election.*?

As AFF admitted in signing the conciliation agreement and in filing the independent
expenditure disclosures, the newspaper, television, digital, and billboard advertisements AFF ran
in August 2014 qualify as political campaign activity. Even though the ads did not use words
like “vote for” Mayor Smith, they “unequivocally constitute express advocacy” and “are
independent expenditures on behalf of Scott Smith” that have “no reasonable meaning other than
to advocate for the election of Smith for governor.”

The newspaper ad, for example, referred specifically to the August 26 gubernatorial
primary election, asserted that Mr. Smith was “just what we need in a governor,” and urged
Arizona Republicans to nominate a candidate who has a proven record. Both versions of the
television ad similarly can only be interpreted as advocating Mr. Smith’s election. Both started
by asserting Mr. Smith is a “better choice for Governor,” stated he is ready to put his experience
to work for the whole state, and concluded that Republicans and independents agree “Governor
Smith sounds just right.” In the context of the advertisement’s discussion of Mr. Smith as a
better choice for governor and display of a newspaper headline saying then-Gov. Brewer had
endorsed Smith for governor, leaving the word “governor” out of the last line does not change
that its message of advocating Mr. Smith’s election. AFF’s Facebook post also referred to the
primary election, asserted Republicans and independents agree that “Arizona needs Scott Smith,”
and concluded by urging readers to imagine what Mr. Smith can do for the state.

result of CCEC’s investigation.” Arizona Future Fund, Response in CCEC MUR No. 14-014, Nov. 17, 2014
(emphasis in original).

#2 Rev. Rul. 2004-06; see also Judith E. Kindell and John Francis Reilly, Election Year Issues, 2002 EOQ CPE Text,
at 349, 388,

3 Rev. Rul. 2007-41; see also Rev. Rul. 2004-06.
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Even if the ads somehow could be thought of as stopping just short of expressly
advocating Mr. Smith’s election, they still constitute political campaign activity. All of the ads
identified Mr. Smith, expressed approval for him and his positions, and were broadcast
immediately before the election. The ads also distinguished the candidates, were not part of any
ongoing series of communications by AFF, and their timing was related to the primary election,
not any non-electoral event.

Section 501(c)(4) provides tax-exempt status to organizations “not organized for profit
but operated exclusively for the promotion of social welfare.”** IRS regulations interpret the
statute to mean a section 501(c)(4) organization must be “primarily engaged in promoting in
some way the common good and general welfare of the people of the community.”* The
regulations further provide that “direct or indirect participation or intervention in political
campaigns on behalf of or in opposition to any candidate for public office” does not promote
social welfare,*0

The IRS has not further defined the “primary activity” standard, and provides only that
all the facts and circumstances are to be taken into account in determining the “primary activity”
of a section 501(c)(4) organization.” Internal IRS training materials, however, assert section
501(c) organizations (other than section 501(c)(3) charities) “may generally make expenditures
for political activities as long as such activities, in conjunction with any other non-qualifying
activities, do not constitute the organization’s primary activity (51%).”*8

AFF admitted it spent $315,575 on independent expenditures during its entire existence
when it spent a total of $474,600. Accordingly, AFF’s political spending constituted at least
66.5% of its total expenditures.

Mr. Canfield’s Previous Involvement with an Organization
That Engaged in Similar Conduct

This is not the first time Mr. Canfield has signed tax returns that did not disclose political
activity by a section 501(c)(4) organization. Starting in 2010, Mr. Canfield served as the general
counsel to the Commission on Hope, Growth and Opportunity (“CHGO”) which, like AFF, was
organized as an unincorporated association in Washington, D.C.*° In 2010, CHGO spent

#26 U.S.C. § 501(c)(4).

* Treas. Reg. § 1.501(c)(4)-1(a)(2)(i). By allowing section 501 (c)(4) organizations to be only “primarily” engaged
in social welfare, the regulation misinterprets the plain meaning of the word “exclusively” in the statute. This
complaint analyzes AFF’s conduct using the “primarily” standard. Under a correct interpretation of the statute,
AFF’s political spending unquestionably would violate its tax-exempt status.

“ Treas. Reg. § 1.501(c)(4)-1(a)(2)(ii).

7 Rev. Rul. 68-45, 1968-1 C.B. 259.

‘8 Exempt Organizations Determinations Unit 2, Student Guide, Training 29450-002 (Rev. 9-2009), at 7-19
(emphasis added), available ar hitp://www.taxanalysts.com/www/freefiles.nsf/Files/RO%204. pdt/$ file/
EQ%204.pdf.

4 See CREW FEC Complaint against CHGO, MUR No. 6471, available at hitp:/fwww.citizensforethics.org/page/-
(PDFs/Legal/4-26-12 CHGO FEC Complaint_Amended.pdfnocdns1.
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millions of dollars on political advertisements ~ nearly all of its spending — but falsely told the
IRS it did not engage in any political activity and failed to report any of its spending on the ads
to the FEC.>® CREW filed IRS and FEC complaints against the group,” and in September 2014
the FEC found reason to believe most of CHGO’s ads were independent expenditures or
electioneering communications that should have been reported.’> Similar to AFF, CHGO went
out of business without engaging in any other substantive activity.”> Mr. Canfield represented
CHGO throughout its existence.

Violations

20 U.S.C. § 6652

Under the Code, a tax-exempt organization that, without reasonable cause, fails to
include any of the information required on a Form 990 tax return or fails to provide the correct
information, is liable for civil penalties.” By failing to report that it engaged in political
campaign activities on its 2014 Form 990-EZ and by failing to report the amount it spent on
them, AFF appears to have violated 26 U.S.C. § 6652 and should be subject to monetary
penalties.

20 US.C. § 7206

Under the Code, any person who “[w]illfully makes and subscribes any return, statement,
or other document, which contains or is verified by a written declaration that it is made under the
penalties of perjury, and which he does not believe to be true and correct as to every material
matter,” is guilty of a felony and subject to up to three years in prison and a fine of up to
$100,000.> The money spent on political campaign activities a tax-exempt organization reports
to the IRS on its Schedule C is material for several reasons, including: (1) the amounts reported
can be used by the IRS to determine whether the organization is complying with its tax-exempt
status; (2) the amount an organization expended on section 527 exempt activities in part
determines exempt function taxes the organization must pay;°® and (3) accurate public disclosure

50 See Hit and Run: How One Supposed Non-Profit Spent Millions on Campaigns., Broken the Law. the
Disappeared, CREW (“Hit and Run Report”), available at hitp:/twww citizensforethics.org/pages/ch go-hit-and-run-
commission-hope-srowth-opportunity; Stuart McPhail, Newly Disclosed Internal Documents Reveal Group’s Lies
to IRS, FEC, CREW, Apr. 20, 2016, available at hitp:/hwww citizensforethics.org/blog/entrv/newly-disclosed-
internal-documents-reveal-groups-lies-to-irs-fec.

31 Hit and Run Report.

32 Federal Election Commission, MURs 6391 and 6471, Factual and Legal Analysis, Sept. 30, 2014, available at
bitp:/fegs. foc goviegsdoesMUR/ 1504438034 1.0d £
33 Adam Rappaport, FEC Fails To Do Its Job, CREW, Nov. 10, 2015, available at hitp:/fwww.ci tizensforethics.org/
blog/entry/tec-fails-to-do-its-job. CHGO hurried to terminate to avoid the FEC investigation. Id.

426 U.S.C. §8 6652(c)(1)(A)(i), 6652(c)(4); see also 2014 Instructions for Form 990, at 6.

$26US.C. § 7206(1).

3626 U.S.C. § 527(H)(1).




Hon. John A. Koskinen
June 15, 2016
Page 9

of the amount of political activity conducted by tax-exempt organizations is critical to the
objective of transparency that underlies the reporting required on Form 990.%

AFF’s 2014 Form 990-EZ was signed by Mr. Canfield under a written declaration that it
was made under penalty of perjury, and that Mr. Canfield had examined the return and it was
true, correct, and complete to the best of his knowledge.”® The tax return, however, appears to be
false and incorrect as to the material matters of the fact that AFF engaged in political campaign
activities in 2014 and the amount it spent on them.

AFF and Mr. Canfield’s representations appear to be willful. Mr. Canfield is an election
and political law attorney with extensive experience filing Form 990 tax returns. Moreover, his
involvement with CHGO demonstrates Mr. Canfield was aware of his obligation to report
political activity to the IRS and the standards for evaluating political campaign activity. As a
result, the representation that AFF spent nothing at all on political activity appears to be willfully
false.

18US.C. § 1001

Federal law further prohibits anyone from “knowingly and willfully” making “any
materially false, fictitious, or fraudulent statement or representation” in any matter within the
jurisdiction of the executive, legislative, or judicial branch.® The prohibition also includes
anyone who “falsifies, conceals, or covers up by any trick, scheme, or device a material fact.”®°
Violations are punishable by up to five years in prison.®! By falsely stating that AFF did not
engage in any political campaign activity on the 2014 Form 990, Mr. Canfield and AFF appear to
have violated 18 U.S.C. § 1001.

20 U.S.C. § 501(c)(4)

Even under the IRS’s misinterpretation of section 501(c)(4), and certainly under the plain
language of the statute, AFF’s political activity in the 2014 election cycle exceeded the amount
permitted, violating the organization’s tax-exempt status. AFF admitted it spent $315,575 on
independent expenditures during its entire existence, which constituted 66.5% of its total
spending in 2014.%2

°7IRS, Background Paper, Summary of Form 990 Redesien Process, August 19, 2008, at 1.

38 Arizona Future Fund 2014 Form 990-EZ, at 4.

%18 U.S.C. § 1001(a)(2).

%018 U.S.C. § 1001(a)(1).

1 Id.

62 AFF reported spending $432,500 on broadcast advertising, but it is unclear if it ran any ads other than the Smith
advertisements. If AFF actually spent that amount on political activities, that would constitute 91.1% of its total
spending in 2014,
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Conclusion

AFF and Mr. Canfield appear to have falsely represented that AFF did not engage in any
political activity in 2014 and omitted hundreds of thousands of dollars in spending on political
activity from AFF’s 2014 tax return. The IRS should investigate AFF and Mr. Canfield and,
should it find they made false or incomplete statements on AFF’s tax return, take appropriate
action. AFF’s activities also may not comport with its claimed status as a section 501(c)(4) tax-
exempt organization. Therefore, the IRS should investigate AFF and, should it find that AFF has
violated its tax-exempt status, take appropriate action, which may include revoking its section
501(c)(4) status, imposing any applicable excise taxes under section 4958 for excess benefit
transactions, and treating AFF as a taxable corporation or a section 527 political organization.

Thank you for your prompt attention to this matter.
Sincerely,
Noah Bookbinder
Executive Director
Citizens for Responsibility and Ethics in Washington

Encls.

cc: IRS-EO Classification
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Form ggo_Ez

Y

Department of the Treasury
interal Revenue Service

ORIGINAL

Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax

¥ Do not enter social security numbers on this form as it may be made public.

b Information about Form 990-EZ and its instructions is at www.irs.gov/form$30.

Under section 501(c), 527, or 4847{a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code (except private foundations)

] OMB No. 1545-1150

Open to Public
Inspection

A For the 2014 calendar year, or tax year beginning

January 1 , 2014, and ending

December 31

20 14

B Check f apphcable € Name of organation D Employer identification number
(] Address change Arizona Future Fund 46-4739838
D Name change Number and street (or P O box, sf mail 1s not delivered to street address) Room/sute E Telephone number
] maia return
Final retum/tesmmnated 109[:;0 omgv:eggtmprownce country, and ZIP or foreign postal code %0 F Grou 532-553-13332
Amended return ! ' ! P p
] Appiication pending Washington, D.C. 20036 Number & N/A
G Accounting Method: Cash [ ] Accrual Other (specify) b H Check B [ 11 the organization s not
I Website: b N/A required to attach Schedule B
J_Tax-exempt status (check only one) — []501(c)3) [¥1501(c)( 4 ) < (insertno) [14947(a)(1) or [J527| (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF).

K Form of organization:

Clcomporaton [ Trust [ Association

Other  Unincorporated association of individuals.

L Add lines 5b, 6¢, and 7b to line 9 to determine gross receipts. If gross receipts are $200,000 or more, or If total assets

(Part H, column (B) below) are $500,000 or more, file Form 990 nstead of Form 980-EZ . . .. By
Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets or Fund Balances (see the instructions for Part 1)
Check if the organization used Schedule O to respond to any question in this Part1 . r .. O
1 Contnbutions, gifts, grants, and similar amounts received . i 474600.00
2  Program service revenue including government fees and contracts 2 0.00
3 Membership dues and assessments . 3 0.00
4  Investment income . .. . . 4 0.00
5a Gross amount from sale of assets other than |nventory e 5a 0.00
b Less: cost or other basis and sales expenses . . . 5b 0.00
¢ Gam or (loss) from sale of assets other than inventory (Subtract hne 5b from line 5a) . Sc 0.00
6 Gaming and fundraising events
a Gross mcome from gaming (attach Schedule G if greater than
“E’ $15,000) . . - . | 8a | 0.00
[ b Gross income from fundrarsmg events (not mcludmg $ of contnbutions
&? from fundraising events reported on line 1) (attach Schedule G if the
sum of such gross income and contributions exceeds $15,000) . . 6b 0.00
¢ Less: direct expenses from gaming and fundraising events . . . 6¢c 0.00
d Net income or (loss) from gaming and fundrarsmg events (add hines 6a and 6b and subtract
line 6¢) - Coe - 6d 0.00
7a Gross sales of inventory, |ess retums and allowances Coe 7a 0.00
b Lless:costofgoodssold . . . . 7o 0.00
¢ Gross profit or (foss) from sales of |nventory (Subtract Ime 7b from hne 7a) ¢ 0.00
8  Otherrevenue (descnbe in Schedule O} . e e e e e e 8 0.00
9  Total revenue. Add lines 1, 2, 3, 4, 5¢, 6d, 7c, and 8 . . Lk 9 474,600.00
r{ 10 Grants and similar amounts paid (it in Schedule O) 10 0.00
%2 |11 Benefits paid to or for members ) ’ 11 0.00
@142  Salanes, other compensation, and empioyee beneﬁts . . 12 0.00
rfﬁ £ 113  Professional fees and other payments to independent contractors 13 463,227.47
'\';3 14  Occupancy, rent, utilities, and maintenance N 14 11,372.53
<ﬁlﬁ 15 Pnnting, publications, postage, and shipping . 15 0.00
5 |16  Other expenses (descnbe in Schedule O) e I T 0.00
= [47  Total expenses. Add lines 10 through 16 . . . . R = 17 474,600.00
(f.".’ 18  Excess or (deficit) for the year (Subtract line 17 from hne 9) i8 0.00
’ 2|19 Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (from line 27, column (A)) (must agree W|th
E"&’ end-of-year figure reported on prior year's return) - e e 19 0.00
5 |20 Other changes in net assets or fund balances (explain in Schedule O) N -\ 0.00
Z |21 Netassets or fund balances at end of year. Combine lines 18 through20 . . . . . . b | 21 0.00

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions.

Cat No 106421

Form 980-EZ (2014)
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Form 990-EZ (2014)

Page 2

w Rl Balance Sheets {see the instructions for Part il)
Check if the organization used Schedule O to respond to any question in this Part Il | T
. (A) Beginning of year (B) End of year
22  Cash, savings, and investments 0.00|22 0.00
23  Land and buildings . o 0.00|23 0.00
24  Other assets (describe in Schedule O) 0.00{24 0.00
25 Total assets . e e e e 0.00{25 0.00
26  Total liabilities (describe in Schedule O) e e e e 0.00/26 0.00
27  Net assets or fund balances (line 27 of column (B) must agree with line 21) 0.00[27 0.00
Statement of Program Service Accomplishments (see the instructions for Part Hh
Check if the organization used Schedule O to respond to any question in this Part lI . 4 Expenses
(Required for section

What is the organization’s primary exempt purpose?  Public policy issue development and messaging.

Describe the organization’s program service accomplishments for each of its three largest program services,

501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4)
organizations, optional for

as measured by expenses. In a clear and concise manner, describe the services provided, the number of | others)
persons benefited, and other relevant information for each program title.
2B public broadcast issue advertising in Arizona media markets discussing the need for job creation
and economic development tied to lower state and local taxes.
(Grants $ None) If this amount includes foreign grants, check here B[] [28a 432,500.00
29
(Grants § ) _If this amount includes foreign grants, check here B[] |29a
30
{Grants § ) If this amount includes foreign grants, check here P [ ] |30a
31 Other program services (describe in Schedule O) e e e .o
(Grants $§ ) If this amount includes foreign grants, check here » [ [31a
32 Total program service expenses (add lines 28a through 31a) . B |32 432,500.00

Part IV List of Officers, Directors, Trustees, and Key Employees (ist each one even if not compensated—see the in
Check if the organization used Schedule O to respond to any question in this Part IV

structions for Part IV)

O

(b} Average {c) Reportable (d) Health benefits,
compensation contnbutions to employee] le) Estimated amount of
{a} Name and trtle d ;L %L:;Sdgzr pV;Z:::m (Forms W-2/1099-MISC) benefit plans, and other compensation
{if not paid, enter -0-) | deferred compensation
Lee Cowen - Executive Director/Treasurer
2.0 5000.00 0.00 0.00
David Beightof - Vice President/Secretary
0.5 0.00 0.00 0.00
W.B. Canfieid - General Counsel
8.0 21,277.47 0.00 0.00

Form 890-EZ (2014)




Form 990-EZ (2014) Page 3

. Other Information (Note the Schedule A and personal benefit contract statement requirements in the
instructions for Part V) Check if the organization used Schedule O to respond to any question in this Part V ]

Yes| No

33 Did the organization engage in any significant activity not prevnously reported to the IRS? If “Yes,” provide a
detailed description of each activity in Schedule O . . . . . e . L. .. 33 V4
34  Were any significant changes made to the organizing or governing documents? if “Yes,” attach a conformed
copy of the amended documents if they reflect a change to the orgamzatron s name. Otherwise, explain the

change on Schedule O {see instructions) . . . . . 34 v
35a Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1 000 or more dunng the year from busmess
activities (such as those reported on lines 2, 6a, and 7a, among others)? . . . . . 35a 4

b f “Yes,” to line 35a, has the organization filed a Form 990-T for the year? If “No,” provide an explanatlon in Schedule 0 I5b
¢ Was the organization a section 501(c)(4), 501(c}(5), or 501(c)(6) organization subject to section 6033(e) notice,
reporting, and proxy tax requirements dunng the year? If “Yes,” complete Schedule C, Part lf . . . . Be v
36 Did the organization undergo a liquidation, dissolution, termination, or significant dlsposrtaon of net assets
dunng the year? If “Yes,” complete applicable parts of ScheduleN . . . . e 36 |
37a Enter amount of political expenditures, direct or indirect, as described in the instructions > | 37a I 0.00
b Did the organization file Form 1120-POL for thisyear? . . . . 37b
38a Did the organization borrow from, or make any loans to, any officer, d;rector trustee or key employee or were
any such loans made in a prior year and still outstanding at the end of the tax year covered by this retum? . 3Ba v
b If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part Il and enter the total amount involved . . . . 38b
39  Section 501(c)(7) organizations. Enter:
a Intiation fees and capital contnbutions included on tire® . . . . . . . . . . 39a
b Gross receipts, included on line 9, for public use of club facilites . . . 3%b
40a Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Enter amount of tax imposed on the orgamzatlon dunng the year under:
section 4911 & ; section 4912 b ; section 4955 &

b Section 501(c)(3), 501{c){4). and 501(c)(29) organizations. Did the organization engage in any section 4958
excess benefit transaction during the year, or did it engage in an excess benefit transaction In a pnor year
that has not been reported on any of its prior Forms 990 or 990-EZ? If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part | 40b V4

¢ Section 501(c)(3), 501{c)(4), and 501(c)(29) organizations. Enter amount of tax imposed
on organization managers or disqualified persons during the year under sections 4912,

4955,and 4958 . . . . . A 0.00
d Section 501(c)(3), 501(c)(4), and 501 (c)(29) organlzatlons Enter amount of tax on hne
4Q0c reimbursed by the organization . . . A 0.00
e All organizations. At any time during the tax year, was the orgamzatlon a party to a prohibited tax shelter
transaction? If “Yes,” complete Form 8886-T . . . . Ce e e e 40e v
41 List the states with which a copy of this return is filed B District of Columbia
42a The organization's books are in care of B W.B Canfield Telephone no. b 202-530-3332
Located at B~ 1900 M Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. ZiP+4 b 20036
b At any tme during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in or a signature or other authority over Yes | No
a financial account in a foreign country (such as a bank account, securities account, or other financial account)? 42b e

if “Yes,” enter the name of the foreign country: B

See the instructions for exceptions and filing requirements for FINCEN Form 114, Report of Foreign Bank and
Financial Accounts (FBAR).

¢ At any ime dunng the calendar year, did the organization maintain an office outside the US.2 . . . . . 42c ¢ -
If “Yes,” enter the name of the foreign country: b
43  Section 4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trusts filing Form 990-EZ in lieu of Form 1041 —Check here . . . . . . B[]
and enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during thetaxyear . . . . . & l 43 l
Yes| No
44a Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds dunng the year? If “Yes,” Form 990 must be
completed instead of Form 990-EZ2 . . . . . 44a w4
b Did the organization operate one or more hosp|tal facmtles dunng the year’7 If "Yes Form 990 must be
completed instead of Form990-e2 . . . . . . . . . . . o e 44b Ve
¢ Did the organization recewve any payments for indoor tanning services dunng the yeaﬂ .o . 44c v
d If "Yes" to ine 44c, has the organization filed a Form 720 to report these payments’? If "No prowde an
explanation in Schedule O . . . . . .. e e e e 44d
45a Did the organization have a controlied entrty within the meaning of section 51 2(b)(1 3) o 45a v
b Dud the organization receive any payment from or engage in any transaction with a controlled entity W|thm the
meaning of section 512(b){(13)? if “Yes,” Form 990 and Schedule R may need to be completed instead of
Form 990-E7 (see instructions) . . . . . . . . . . . e e 45b v

Form 990-EZ (2014




Form 990-EZ (2014) Page 4
Yes | No

46 Did the organization engage, directly or indirectly, in political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposition
to candidates for public office? If “Yes,” complete Schedule C, Part! . . . . . . . . . . . . . 46 v

Section 501(c)(3) organizations only

All section 501(c)(3) organizations must answer questions 47-49b and 52, and complete the tables for lines

50 and 51.
Check if the organization used Schedule O to respond to any question in this Part VI . . . . . . . . . ]
Yes| No
47  Did the organization engage in lobbying activities or have a section 501(h) election in effect during the tax
year? If “Yes,” complete Schedule C, Part il . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 47
48  Is the organization a schoo! as described in section 170(b){1)(A)i)? If “Yes,” complete ScheduleE . . . . 48
49a Did the organization make any transfers tc an exempt non-chantable related organizaton? . . . . . . 48a
b If “Yes,” was the related organization a section 527 orgamization? . . . 49b

50  Complete this table for the organization's five highest compensated employees {other than officers, directors, trustees and key
employees) who each received more than $100,000 of compensation from the organization. If there 1s none, enter “None.”

(cf) Heatth benefits,
{b) Average {c) Reportable

contributions to employee ] (e} Estimated armnount of
{(a) Name and ttle of each employee hours per week compensation benefit plans, and deferred|  other compensation

devoted to posttion (Forms W-2/1099-MISC) compensation

f Total number of other employees paid over $100,000 . . . . b

51 Complete this table for the organization's five highest compensated independent contractors who each received more than
$100,000 of compensation from the orgamzation. If there 1s none, enter “None."

(a) Name and business address of each independent contractor (b} Type of service (c) Compensation

d Total number of other independent contractors each receiving over $100,000 . . b

52 Did the organization complete Schedule A? Note. All section 501(c)(3) organizations must attach a
completed ScheduleA . . . . . . . . . . . L B[ JYes ] No

Under penalties of perjury, | declare that | have examined this retum, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge and belief, it s
true, correct, and complete Declaration of preparer (othqlhan officer} 1s based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge
ra

(AT ol mm— [ ?{lv/'y(//&{;

Sign Signature of officer Dat
Here William B. Canfield - General Counsel
Type or print name and title

Paid Prnt/Type preparer's name Preparer's signature Date Check [ # PTIN
Pr eparer self-empioyed
Use Only [Fmsname » Firm's EIN B

Fimm's address & Phone no
May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? See Instructions, . e e B []Yes []No

Form 990-EZ (2014)
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Schedule N (Form 990 or 990-E2) (2014) Page 3
LERIl  Supplemental information. Provide the information required by Part [, lines 2e and 6¢, and Part 1i, line 2e.
" Also complete this part to provide any additional information.

B

The purposes of the social welfare organization having been accomplished and all outstanding invoices duly paid, the Board of the

Arizona Future Fund, by resolution dated decernber 30, 2014, terminated its activities and closed its books prepatory to notifyingthe

Internal Revenue Service of such termination through the filing of a terminating Form 990 E2. A copy of the Resolution of the Board as

adopted on Deember 30, 2014 is attached hereto.

Schedule N (Form 930 or 990-E2) (2014)




Arizona Future Fund
A Tax-Exempt Social Welfare Organization

EIN: 46-4739838

Resolution of the Board

The Board of the Arizona Future Fund, an unincorporated association of
individuals, with its place of business in Washington, D.C. , having determined
that the social welfare purpose for which the association was created having
been achieved within calendar year 2014 and that no additional purpose exists as
to which the association might become engaged, has this m day of
December, 2014 agreed, by unanimous consent, to a Resolution to terminate
immediately the activities of the Arizona Future Fund and to notify the Internal
Revenue Service of said decision by the filing of a termination Form 990-EZ before
the close of the entity’s tax year on December 31, 2014.

AGREED TO:
LEs— R N -
X
v )
Lee Cowen David Beightol
Executive Director/Treasurer Vice President/Secretary
ATTEST:

William B. Canfield — General Counse|
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STATE OF ARIZONA
CITIZENS CLEAN ELECTIONS COMMISSION
MUR 14-014
Arizona Future Fund
STATEMENT OF REASONS OF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

On behalf of the Citizens Clean Elections Commission (“Commission”), the
Executive Director hereby provides the following Statement of Reasons why there
is reason to believe that a violation of the Citizens Clean Elections Act and
Commission rules (collectively, the “Act”) may have occurred.

L Procedural Background

On August 13 and August 20, 2014, Michael Liburdi (“Complainant”) filed
complaints (collectively the “Complaint”) with the Commission and with the
Arizona Secretary of State’s Office against an entity known as the Arizona Future
Fund (“AFF” or “Respondent”) alleging that Respondent had violated Arizona’s
campaign finance laws, including the Citizens Clean Elections Act. Exhibits 1, 2.
Respondent filed two timely responses at the request of Commission staff, on
August 28 and November 18, 2014. Exhibits 3, 4 The Arizona Secretary of State
referred the matter to the Maricopa County Recorder’s Office, who, in turn,
referred the matter to an outside attorney. Exhibit 5. That attorney concluded that
there was reasonable cause to believe a violation of Article 1 of Chapter 6, Title
16. Id. Based on that conclusion, the Secretary of State’s office issued a
reasonable cause determination on September 10, 2014 stating “the [Respondent]
has violated provisions of Title 16, Chapter 6, Article 1 of the Arizona Revised

1



Statutes, specifically AR.S. § 16-914.02(A)(1), 16-914.02(F) and 16-914.02(K),
and other applicable statutes related to the failure to perform a duty as required by
law.” Id.
IL.  Legal Analysis

This complaint involves a television advertisement and a newspaper
advertisement involving Mayor Scott Smith, then a candidate for the Republican
Nomination for Governor.

The script of the television advertisement is as follows:
[Voice Over]: Tired of Empty Promises and All the He Said She Said
[VO] There’s a better choice.
[VO] As Mayor of Mesa Scott Smith cut taxes, created jobs, and reduced crime.
[VO] The result has been called the Mesa Miracle
[VO]Now Scott’s ready to put the same proven government and entrepreneurial
experience to work for all of Arizona.
[VO]He knows the best solutions for problems on our border come from here, not
Washington.
[VO] Republicans and independents agree, Scott Smith sounds just right.
Screen shots are attached as Exhibit 6. These show two of Smith’s opponents for
the Republican nomination, then pictures of Smith with text underscoring the
advertisement’s script, stating “There’s a better choice for governor” and
concluding with the words “Scott Smith.” Id. The value of the television
advertisement was $74,247. Exhibit 1.

The print advertisement, which ran in the Prescott Daily Courier, is

reproduced in Exhibit 2. It includes a campaign photograph of Smith and



advertises Governor Jan Brewer’s endorsement of Smith and stated that Smith
“[b]rought better jobs, schools and roads as Mayor—1Just what we need in a
Governor.”

Finally, internet advertising was purchased urging viewers to “take action”
by “support[ing] Scott Smith’s real leadership.” This advertisement is reproduced
in Exhibit 2.

These advertisements unequivocally constitute express advocacy under
Arizona law and are independent expenditures on behalf of Scott Smith that were
required to be reported under the Clean Elections Act. A.R.S. §§ 16-901(14); -

901.01; -941(D); -942(B); -958. Arizona law defines “expressly advocates” as:

[1.] Making a general public communication, such as in a broadcast
medium, newspaper, magazine, billboard or direct mailer

[2.] referring to one or more clearly identified candidates and
[3.] targeted to the electorate of that candidate(s)

[4.] that in context can have no reasonable meaning other than to
advocate the election or defeat of the candidate(s), as evidenced by
factors such as the presentation of the candidate(s) in a favorable or
unfavorable light, the targeting, placement or timing of the
communication or the inclusion of statements of the candidate(s) or
opponents.

ARS. § 16-901.01(A)(2).

The pro-Smith advertisements easily satisfy all of the requirements. The
advertisements appeared in broadcast, print media and on the Internet and referred

clearly to Smith, a candidate for governor. See A.R.S. § 16-901(4) (defining

3



clearly identified candidate as the appearance of “the name, a photograph or a
drawing of the candidate.”). The targets included areas that reached the
Republican gubernatorial electorate. Finally, in context, the communications
cannot be viewed as urging anything other than a vote for Scott Smith: The
advertisements stated:

Television: there was a “better choice” for governor and that Republicans

and independents supported Smith;

Print: Smith and his mayoral record are what is “needed in a Governor”;

Internet: viewers should “take action” by supporting Smith.

These advertisements ran in the weeks leading up to the 2014 primary election.
Based on a review of the text, video, voice-over, and timing of the advertisements
in relation to Smith’s candidacy for governor, the advertisements had no
reasonable meaning other than to advocate for the election of Smith for governor.
See Comm. for Justice & Fairness v. Arizona Sec'y of State's Office, 235 Ariz. 347
126, 332 P.3d 94, 101 (App. 2014) (holding that plaintiff’s advertisement
constituted express advocacy under the Arizona statute).

In its responses AFF argues that the definition of express advocacy in
Arizona should be limited to so-called magic words and that the term “purpose of
influencing the results of an election” as used in A.R.S. § 16-901(8) defining
expenditures must be limited in order to be constitutional. Exhibits 3, 4 (citing

Buckley v. Valeo, 424 U.S. 1 (1976)). This argument is foreclosed by the text of

the Clean Elections Act, including A.R.S. § 16-901.01, and is inconsistent with the



Court of Appeals’ decision in Comm. for Justice & Fairness, which recognizes that
Arizona is not limited to so-called magic words in providing for disclosure of
election spending.

The entity AFF is not a corporation and does not appear to dispute the value
of the expenditures involved.
III. Recommendation

Because AFF made express advocacy communications and filed no reports,
it is subject to enforcement under the Citizens Clean Elections Act and Rules for
violating A.R.S. §§ 16-941(D) and -958(A) and (B). If the Commission
determines by an affirmative vote of at least three (3) of its members that it has
reason to believe AFF has violated a statute or rule over which the Commission
has jurisdiction, the Commission shall notify AFF of the Commission’s finding
setting forth: (i) the sections of the statute or rule alleged to have been violated; (ii)
the alleged factual basis supporting the finding; and (iii) an order requiring
compliance within fourteen (14) days. During that period, the Respondent may
provide any explanation to the Commission, comply with the order, or enter into a
public administrative settlement with the Commission. A.R.S. § 16-957(A) &
Ariz. Admin. Code R2-20-208(A).

If the Commission finds reason to believe that a violation of a statute or rule
over which the Commission has jurisdiction has occurred, the Commission shall

conduct an investigation. Ariz. Admin. Code R2-20-209(A). The Commission

5



may authorize the Executive Director to subpoena all of the Respondent’s records
documenting disbursements, debts, or obligations to the present, and may authorize
an audit.

Upon expiration of the fourteen (14) days, if the Commission finds that the
alleged violator remains out of compliance, the Commission shall make a public
finding to that effect and issue an order assessing a civil penalty in accordance with
A.R.S. § 16-942, unless the Commission publishes findings of fact and conclusions
of law expressing good cause for reducing or excusing the penalty. A.R.S. § 16-
957(B).

After fourteen (14) days and upon completion of the investigation, the
Executive Director will recommend whether the Commission should find probable
cause to believe that a violation of a statute or rule over which the Commission has
jurisdiction has occurred. Ariz. Admin. Code R2-20-214(A). Upon a finding of
probable cause that the alleged violator remains out of compliance, by an
affirmative vote of at least three (3) of its members, the Commission may issue of
an order and assess civil penalties pursuant to A.R.S. § 16-957(B). Ariz. Admin.

Code R2-20-217.

Dated this 9th day of December, 2014,

By: s/Thomas M. Collins
Thomas M. Collins, Executive Director




EXHIBIT C




6/13/2016 Arizona Future Fund

Timeline About Photos l.ikes Videos

. Arizona Future Fund
August 11,2014 -

Qrganization

Search for posts on this Page On August 26, Arizona voters will go to the polls to elect the next
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Michae!l T, Liburdi i
602.382-6170 August 20, 2014

mliburdigdswlaw.com

VIA EMAIL AND U.S. MAIL

Christina Estes-Werther Thomas M. Collins

Election Director Executive Director

Secretary of State’s Office Citizens Clean Elections Commission
1700 West Washington, 7" Floor 1616 West Adams, Suite 110

Phoenix, AZ 85007 Phoenix, AZ 85007
ewerther@azsos.gov Thomas.Collins@azcleanelections.gov

Re: Arizona Future Fund
Dear Ms. Istes-Werther and Mr. Colling:

This is a campaign finance complaint against Arizona Future Fund ("AFF™), which
purports to be an entity recognized by the IRS as having S501(c)(4) suatus.  See
www.arizonafuturefund.com. As we mentioned in our August 13, 2014 complaint letter. we
believe that AFF is an association that obtained 501(c)(4) status from the IRS in June 2014, The
contact person is William B. Canfield II1, and its address is 1900 M. Street NW, Washington,
DC 20036.

loday. August 20, 2014, AFF ran an advertisement in the Prescolr Daily Courier

advocating the clection of Scott Smith. Attached hereto are three photographs of the
advertisement,

AFF has also paid for advertisements on the internet advocating the election of Mr.
Smith. Attached hereto is a screenshot of one of the advertisements,

Legal Violation: Failure to Register as a Political Committee and Disclose (A.R.S. §§ 16-
902, 16-902.01, 16-914.02(A)(1), (F) & (K), 16-941(D) and 16-958)

For an independent expenditure made in a statewide race, A.RS. § 16-914.02(A)
mandates that a corporation, limited liability company. or labor organization file a registration to
the Secretary of State “not later than one day after making the expenditure, excluding Saturdays,




Christina Fstes-Werther
Thomas M. Colling
August 20, 2014

Page 2

Sundays and other legal holidays.” The expenditure threshold is any single expenditure or
aggregate expenditures of $5,000 or more. AR.S. § 1 6-914.02(A)(1). As we mentioned in our
August 13, 2014 letter, AFF’s broadcast advertisement expenditures ($74,247) exceeded the
$5,000 mark on or about August 8, 2014. To this day, AFT has not registered with the Secretary
of State’s office and provided reports as required by the Arizona Citizens Clean Elections Act,

AFL has now made another electioneering expenditure with the Prescort Daily Courier,
and yet another expenditure on internet advertising, but is still has not registered with the
Secretary of State nor has it submitted the required reports.

As you know, AR.S. § 16-914.02(K) states that an entity “that is organized primarily for
the purpose of influencing an election™ must register and report with the Secretary of State as a
political committee. In a matter of weeks, AFT has spent tens of thousands of dollars — perhaps
over $100,000 - advocating for the election of their favored candidate and, despite media
coverage and our August 13. 2014 complaint, has failed to register the organization and report
their spending. As far as we can tell, AFF has no activity other than to advocate the election of
their favored Arizona candidate and it appears to us that it is not eligible for the registration and
reporting procedures under AR.S. §16-914.02 but, instead, must register as a political
commitiee.

Morcover, at this point in the cycle, their failure to follow the law and heed the public
call to do so suggests that they have no intention of registering and reporting and perhaps have
made the calculated decision to either (i) evade responsibility for their actions or (i) pay any
fines aller the election simply as a cost of doing business. This, if true, is absolutely
unacceptable.

Finally, AFF’s disclaimers fail to include the required statement “not authorized by any
candidate or candidate’s committee.” A.R.S. § 16-914.02(F).

For these reasons, there is reason to believe that AFT has violated AR.S. §§ 16-902, 16-
902.01. 16-914.02(A) 1), (F) & (K), 16-941(D) and 16-958, among other laws. We respectfully
ask for the following relief:

1. That the Secretary of State refer this matter to the Attorney General under AR.S,
§ 16-924 without delay for the reasons stated herein; and

2. That the Citizens Clean FElections Commission find reasonable cause that a
campaign finance violation of the Citizens Clean Elections Act’s reporting requirements has

occurred under AR.S. §§ 16-941(D) and 16-958,




Christina Estes-Werther
Thomas M. Colling
August 20, 2014

Page 3

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct,

£k

Michael T. Liburdi

State of Arizona )
)

County of Maricopa )

Subscribed and sworn (or amrmed) before me this 2@ day of /\ngust 014, by
Michael T. Liburdi.

Enclosures:
1. Prescott Daily Courier (Aug 20, 2014) photographs
2. Screenshot of AFF internet advertisement

ML/ct

19938797 1
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KEN BENNETT
SECRETARY OF STATE
STATE OF ARIZONA

August 12, 2014

Karen Osborne, Director
Maricopa County Elections
111 South 3 Avenue, #102
Phoenix, Arizona 85003

Dear Ms. Osborne:

Our office has received the enclosed email complaint alleging that Arizona Future
Fund may have failed to comply with Arizona campaign finance requirements.

The Secretary of State’s office is conflicted out of reviewing this complaint so we
are referring this complaint to Maricopa County Elections for your reasonable
cause review.

If you have any questions, please contact Nancy Read at (602) 364-1562 or by
email at nread@azsos.gov.

Sincerely,

- - g e s £
Chscatern Suts- Westhion

Christina Estes-Werther
State Election Director

Enclosures

ce! Michael T. Liburdi

1700 W. Washington Street, 7th Floor
Phoenix, Arizona §5007-2888
Telephone (602) 542-8683 Fax (602) 542-6172

WWW,aZS08.80V




Estes-Werther, Christina

From: Liburdi, Mike <mliburdi@swlaw.com>

Sent: Tuesday, August 12, 2014 5:16 PM

To: Estes-Werther, Christina

Subject: Campaign Finance Complaint -- Arizona Future Fund (ARS 16-914.02(A) & (F))
Attachments: Scott Smith_ Just Right.mp4

Categories: Immediate

Dear Ms. Estes-Werther:

This is a campaign finance complaint against Arizona Future Fund ("AFF"), which purports to be an entity recognized
by the IRS as having 501(c)(4) status. See www.arizonafuturefund.com. On Friday, August 8, the Ducey 2014 campaign
was informed that AFF made a $74,247 media buy for television advertisements in the Phoenix, Tucson, and Yuma cable
markets. See Table 1, below. The start date of the advertisement is reported as of Saturday, August 9, 2014. The
advertisement expressly advocates in favor of Scott Smith. AFF’s advertisement is available on its website and we have
attached a video file copy to this email.

Table 1: AFF Cable Buy

Phoenix Cable ONE/Arizona Regional, AZ

Phoenix Cox Media/DirecTV- I+ Phoenix IC, AZ

Phoenix Cox Media/DISH- I+ Phoenix IC, AZ

Phoenix Cox Media/Phoenix Interconnect, AZ $ 61 ,188
Tueson/Nogales Cox Media/Tucson DMA Interconnect, AZ $ 10,553
Yuma/El Centro Time Warner/El Centro, CA $ 2,506

Total: § 74,247

Failure to Register as an Independent Expenditure Organization (A.R.S. 16-914.02(A))

For an independent expenditure made in a statewide race, A.R.S. 16-914.02(A) mandates that a corporation,
limited liability company, or labor organization file a registration to your office “not later than one day after making the
expenditure, excluding Saturdays, Sundays and other legal holidays.” The expenditure threshold is any single
expenditure or aggregate expenditures of $5,000 or more. A.R.S. 16-914.02(A)(1). Arizona law broadly defines
“expenditure” to include events where money is exchanged and also those events in which a person makes a promise of
future payment. A.R.S. 16-901(8) (defining “expenditure” to include any “purchase, payment, distribution, loan,
advance, deposit, or gift of money or anything of value made by a person for the purpose of influencing an election in
this state . . . and a contract, promise or agreement to make an expenditure resulting in an extension of credit . . .

). According to the law, AFF’s expenditure was made, at the latest, on Friday, August 8, 2014 because AFF made a
“purchase, payment, distribution, loan, advance, [or] deposit” or otherwise entered into a “contract, promise, or
agreement” to purchase airtime on or before that date.




At $74,247, AFF’s media buy from last week well exceeds the $5,000 registration threshold. Assuming that it
made the expenditure on Friday, August 8, 2014, AFF was required to register with your office no later than Monday,
August 11, 2014. Of course, AFF's expenditure could have been made earlier than August 8, 2014, and the requirement
to register with your office would have been one day following the actual expenditure date.

For these reasons, there is reason to believe that AFF has violated A.R.S. 16-914.02(A}{1), and we ask that your
office refer the matter to the Attorney General.

Failure to Include Disclaimer (A.R.S. 16-914.02(F))

A.R.S. 16-914.02(F) requires that any corporation, limited liability company, or labor organization making an
independent expenditure include the words “paid for by,” followed by its name, and also include the additional
disclaimer “not authorized by any candidate or candidate’s committee.” Attached hereto is a video file of AFF’s
advertisement, captured on August 12, 2014. The video does not include the phrase “not authorized by any candidate
or candidate’s committee.” The lack of this disclaimer violates A.R.S. 16-914.02(F), and we ask that your office refer the
matter to the Attorney General.

Please let me know if | can provide you any further information.

Best regards,
Michael T. Liburdi

MICHAEL T. LIBURDI

Snell & Wilmer L.L.P.

One Arizona Center

400 East Van Buren Street, Suite 1800
Phoenix, Arizona 85004
mliburdi@swlaw.com

(602) 382-6170 (direct)

(602) 369-6070 (cell)

(602) 382-6070 (fax)

Twitter: @mliburdi




EXHIBIT F




Snell & Wilmer s

LMW OFFICES s ANOELES
LOSCABOS

One Axizona Center » ’
403 Bast Ven Buren Streer ORANGECOURTY

Suite 1500
Phoendy, Ackzona 85004-2702
602.382.6000 SALTLAKECITY
602.382.6070 (Fax} . . . TUCSGN
wronvgswlaw.com ‘ )
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Michael T, Liburdi . .
602.382-6170 August 13,2014

miibuidi@swlaw.com

YIA BMAIL ANDU.S; MAIL,

Th‘or‘nas.Colh‘n’sx@azélea“néieéﬁé'nﬁ;ggy;
Thomas M. Collins

Executive Director

Citizens Clean Elections Commission
1616 West Adams, Suife 110

Phoenix, AZ 85007

Re:  Arxizona Future Fund
Dear Mr, Collins:

This is a caimpaign findnée complaint. against. Arizona Fatire Fund (“AFF”), which
purports to be an entity recognized by the IRS as having 501(c)(4) stafus. See
www.arizonafutivefund.com. Our research indicates that AFF is dh asgocidtion that oblained
501(c)(4) status from the IRS in June 2014, The contact person is William B. Canfield 111, and
its address is 1900 M, Street N'W, Washington, DC 20038.

On Friday, August 8, the Ducey 2014 campaign was informed that AFF made a $74,247
media buy fortelevision advértisermiehts in the Phivehix, Tuosex, and Yuind cable markets. See
Table 1, below. The start date of the advertisement is reported as of Saturday, August 9, 2014,
The advertisefiient expréessly advocates in favor of Scott Smith, AFF’s adveértiserent is available
on its website.

Table 1: ARF Cable Buy

[ Phoenix, . ... _ 1 Cable ONE/Arizona Regional,l A2 |~
| Phoenix 1 Cox Media/DirecTV- 1+ Phoenix IC,
e . | AZ ;
Phoenix . " 1 Cox Media/DISH- I+ Phoenix IC, AZ | . . .~
g Phoenix | Cox Media/Phoenix Interconmest, AZ {$ 61,188 |

Tucson/Nogales | Cox Media/Tucson DMA 1$ 10,553
: ;| Interconnect, AZ . e

Yuma/El Cenfro | Time Warnew/El Contry, CA .

B s ATttt
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Snell & Witmer

Thomas M. Callins
August 13,2014
Page 2 '

Legal Violation: Failure to Register as an Independent Expenditure Qrganization (ARS8,
§§ 16-914.02(A), 16-941(D) snd 16-958)

For an independent expenditure made in a statewide race, AR.S. § 16-914.02(A)
miandates that a.corporation, limited Hability coimpany, or labor otganization file a tegistration to
the Secretary of State “not later than one day affer making the expenditure, excluding Saturdays,
Sundays and other legal holidays.” The expenditure threshold is any single expenditire or
aggregate expenditures of $5,000.0r more. AR.S, § 16-914.02(A)(1). Arizona law broadly
defines “expenditure” o include events where money is exchanged and also those events in
which a persor miakes & proiise of future paymant. AR.S, § 16-901(8) (defining “expenditure”
to include any “purchase, payment, distribution, loan, advance, deposit, or gift of money or
anythitig of valié made by a person fof the piitposs of influeticing an élection in this state . . .
and a contract, promise or agreement to make an expenditure resulting in an extension of credit ,
... According to the law, AFF’s expenditure was made, at the latest, on Friday, August 8,
2014 because AFF made a “purchase, paymient, distribution, loan,. advance, [or] deposit” or
otherwise entered inte a “contract, promise, or agreement” to purchase airtime on or before that
date,

At $74,247, AFF’s media by from: last seek well exdeeds the $5,000 registfation
threshold. Assuming that it made the expenditure on Friday, August 8, 2014, AFF was required
to register with the Secretaty of Staté no later than Monday, August 11, 2014. Of course, AFF’s
expenditure could have been made earlier than August 8, 2014, and the requirement to registér
with the Secretary of State would have been one day following the actual expenditure date.
Moréover, under the Clean Elections Act, A.R.S. §§ 16-941(D) arid 16-958, AFF was required to
submit expenditure reports with the Secretary of Stafe, according to a specified schedule, which
it has not done.

For these reasons, there is reason to believe that AFF has violated AR.S, '§§ 16=
914.02(A)(1), 16-941(D) and 16-958, and wie asgk that you recomimend that the Commission find
reasoriable cause that a campaign finance violation has oceurred.

I declaré under penalty of petjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

; ": : ! ~ "hj{;'
Mieﬁéel T Liburiii

«,
s
4

W
%




Snell & Wilmer

Thorias M. Collius
August 13,2014
Page 3

State of Arizona )
)

Subscribed and swoin (or dffirmed) befors mc thii§ _L_B day of Avgust, 2014, by
Michael T, Liburdi, o 5 o S
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cest Christing Bstes-Werther
Karen Osborne
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Sara Larsen

From: William Canfield <canfieldwilliam@gmail.com >
Sent: Tuesday, December 23, 2014 9:26 AM

To: Sara Larsen; Read, Nancy

Subject: Fwd: Scan from a Xerox WorkCentre
Attachments: DOC.PDF

Sara: I managed to make a copy of the IE expenditure report before I hit the submit button. Nancy Read
suggested that I send the attached PDF of thate report to you and to her just as a back-up in case the report
wasn't received via the Secretary of State's website. Thanks for all of your help. Bill Canfield.

————— Original Message-----

From: XRX5790@smcalaw.com [mailto:XRXS5790@smealaw.com]
Sent: Tuesday, December 23, 2014 11:08 AM

To: JPena

Subject: Scan from a Xerox WorkCentre

Please open the attached document. It was scanned and sent to you using a Xerox WorkCentre.
Attachment File Type: PDF

WorkCentre Location: machine location not set
Device Name: XRX0000AADDDOBA

For more information on Xerox products and solutions, please visit http://www.xerox.com

William B. Canfield III
Attorney at Law

Suite 600

1900 M Street, N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20036
(202) 530-3332 - office
(202) 345-5547 - mobile
canfieldwiliam@gmail.com
Hicapitolsa@gmail.com
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William B. Canfield Il
Attorney at Law
Suite 600
1900 M Street, North West
Washington, D.C. 20036
{202) 530-3332
canfieldwilliam@gmail.com

August 28, 2014

Ms. Sara A. Larsen

Campaign Finance Manager
Citizens Clean Elections Commission
1616 W. Adams

Suite 110

Phoenix, AZ 85007

Re: CCEC MUR NO. 14-014

Dear Ms. Larsen:

As you know, | represent the Arizona Future Fund (the “AFF”). The AFF is an unincorporated
association of individuals formed pursuant to the statutes of the District of Columbia. The AFF was
organized as such on February 6, 2014. The AFF is recognized by the Internal Revenue Service as a social
welfare organization under paragraph 501c4 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. The

Internal Revenue Service formally granted the AFF its status as a tax-exempt, social welfare organization
onh July 10, 2014,

This letter will serve as the response of the AFF to the unsubstantiated assertions made by
Michael T. Liburdi in his letier to your office of August 20, 2014. 1 have carefully reviewed the assertions
made in Mr. Liburdi’s letter and respectfully suggest to you that these assertions are without any factual
basis and more importantly, the assertions are not supported by any factual evidence. As a resut, the
assertions should be determined to be unsupported and thus dismissed. In addition, | note for the
record that, upon information and belief, Mr. Liburdi does not come before the Citizens Clean Elections
Commission with the requisite “clean hands” of a disinterested amicus curiae for the reason that Mr.
Liburdi now represents Arizona Treasurer Doug Ducey, a public office holder currently seeking a higher
office in the state. Itis without argument that Mr. Liburdi’s vested interest in seeing that Mr. Ducey will

be elevated to higher office appears to be best served by limiting a robust public debate on the very
policy issues embraced by the AFF.




The AFF was created for one purpose and one purpose only, to communicate with the public on
a set of public policy issues facing the citizens of Arizona over the next decade. In developing the
criteria by which AFF embraced certain public policy issues and not others, AFF initiated a
comprehensive review of media commentary within the state on a broad range of public policy issues
and AFF established a website that contains an on-line forum through which the citizens of Arizona can
express their opinion as to the specific public policy issues of most concern to them. The results of that
public policy polling are prominently displayed on the AFF website and were the factual basis upon
which AFF selected the policy issues which it supports.

Having used the website opinion poll and media commentary to determine the policy issues to
be embraced by AFF, the AFF thereafter reviewed the public policy positions and pronouncements of a
large number of opinion leaders within Arizona. The policy pronouncements of opinion leaders
reviewed by AFF included those made by newspaper editors, business executives, labor leaders and
public office holders. In the considered judgment of AFF, one opinion leader, former mayor Scott Smith
of Mesa had the public policy background and leadership skills that would be most likely to advance the
policy initiatives of the AFF. For this reason, and this reason only, AFF initiated a public communications
effort with the citizens of the state to explain the policy initiatives of AFF and to commended former
mayor Smith for his leadership on those very same policy issues.

In communicating with the public on the policy issues embraced hy AFF, which had been
previously supported by Smith during his successful term as mayor of Mesa, the AFF did NOT seek to
influence any election in Arizona. As a social welfare organization operating under paragraph 501c4 of
the IRC of 1986, AFF was guided by experienced counsel and took considerable care to insure that no
language or text employed in these public communications might constitute an endorsement of any
candidate for public office. Similarly, AFF took great care to insure that no language or text employed in
these public communications could be construed as advocating the election or defeat of an indentified
candidate for public office. As you know, the United States Supreme Court has provided definitive
guidance on what can be deemed an “electioneering communication” and thus be the subject of a
narrowly defined governmental regulation that remains consistent with the strict protections offered to
free public speech under the First Amendment to the U. S. Constitution.

Mr. Liburdi appears to suggest that AFF should have chosen to conduct its communications
efforts as an “independent expenditure” committee under ARS B 16-914.02A rather than as a social
welfare organization under paragraph 501c4 of the IRC of 1986. | respectfully disagree with that
premise. An “independent expenditure” committee is, under both federal and state law, a political
committee whose principal purpose is to influence an election by making an “electioneering
expenditure.” As “evidence” to support his thesis, Mr. Liburdi simply asserts that an AFF communication
in the Prescott (AZ) Daily Courier of August 20, 2014 and unspecified AFF internet communications
constituted electioneering communications because they advocated “the election of Mr. Smith.”
Unfortunately, Mr. Liburdi fails to cite any specific language used by AFF in either of these two
communications that he contends advocated the election of Mr. Smith. In these communications, AFF
was careful to reference the public policy positions undertaken by Mr. Smith during his service as mayor
of Mesa and simply asked the reader or viewer to judge for themselves whether former mavyor Smith’s
policy initiatives were the kinds of public policies that should be adopted broadly within Arizona over
the next decade.

Because the AFF is not a political committee and does not seek to advacate the election or
defeat of any identified candidate, the AFF could not have carried out its social welfare and public




communications mission as an “independent expenditure” committee under Arizona law. However,
under the regulations of the Internal Revenue Service, the AFF, as a tax-exempt 501¢4 organization, is
completely free to coordinate any or all of its efforts, including content, placement and forum, with any
third party, to include former mavyor Smith. However, the AFF chose not to coordinate any of its public
communications efforts with any third party. The facts are that the AFF did not coordinate any of its
activities with either Mr. Smith or any individuals consulting with Mr. Smith. Neither Mr. Smith nor any
of his colleagues exercised any direction or control over the communications initiated by the AFF.

As a social welfare organization operating under paragraph 501¢4 of the IRC of 1986, the AFF
has an on-going obligation to the Internal Revenue Service to insure that its social welfare obligation is
met and that its principal purpose remains the education of the public on substantive policy issues. As
regulated by the Internal Revenue Service, the AFF files an annual informational tax return (IRS Form
990). On its Form 990 return, AFF discloses to the Internal Revenue Service all donations received and
expenditures made in furtherance of its social welfare obligation. In addition, the Form 990 filed with
the Internal Revenue Service discloses to the Service the identity of all donors to the AFF. A copy the
AFF Form 990 return will be made available for public inspection at my office, once it has been filed.

Because there is no evidence to support the generalized assertions made by M. Liburdi in his
letter of August 20, 2014 and because of obvious function as a partisan agent for Mr. Ducey, t would
respectfully request that the Citizens Clean Elections Commission dismiss the complaint and take no
further action with respect to the AFF. If  can be of any additional assistance, please feel free to contact
me directly.

With best wishes,

Sincerely,

William B. Canfield
Counsel to the Arizona Future Fund
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William B. Canfield Il
Attorney at Law
Suite 600
1900 M Street, North West
Washington, D.C. 20036
(202) 530-3332
canfieldwilliam@gmail.com

November 17, 2014

Ms. Sara A. Larsen
Mr. Thomas Collins
Citizens Clean Elections Commission
1616 W. Adams
Suite 110
Phoenix, AZ 85007

Re: CCEC MUR NO. 14-014

Dear Ms. Larsen and Mr. Collins:

I received, via an email attachment on Friday, November 14, 2014, your cover letter of that date
as well as a complaint dated August 13, 2014 which appears to have been received by your office on
that same date. As we discussed by phone on November '14, 2014, your email attaching the complaint
of August 13, 2014 was the first and only indication | had as to the very existence of this complaint. Had
I been timely apprised of your receipt of this complaint, | would have immediately responded to it as
required by the rules of the Commission. Notwithstanding the more than ninety days that have
transpired since the complaint was filed, | now respond out of deference to the Commission andina
good-faith effort to settle MUR NO. 14-014 in a mutually agreeable manner.

The complaint of August 13, 2014, prepared and filed by an attorney for the committee
supporting Governor-elect Ducey, suggests that the Arizona Future Fund (the “Fund”), a tax-exempt
association of individuals conducting its social welfare purpose under section 501c4 of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, violated certain specified sections of Arizona Statutes, to wit,
sections 16-914.02(A), 16-941(D) and 16-958, by failing to file as an “independent expenditure”
committee and disclose its activities to the State of Arizona. As defined in A.R.S. 16-901(8), the term
“expenditure” means a payment made “for the purpose of influencing an election.” As set forth in my
letter to the Commission of August 28, 2014, which is specifically incorporated by reference hereby, the
Arizona Future Fund did not make an “independent expenditure” and is not a “political committee” for
the reasons set forth in my letter of August 28, 2014. The phrase to “influence an election” is so
amorphous and subjective that the United States Supreme Court in the seminal decision of Buckley v.
Valeo held that the term could withstand a First Amendment challenge only if the speech at issue
contained words of “express advocacy” such as “elect,” “defeat,” “vote for,” or “vote against” an
identified candidate. The complainant in this matter fails to cite a single word or phrase in the print or
broadcast messages paid for by the Fund that constitute “express advocacy” as outlined in the Buckley
decision. Because the public policy speech paid for by the Fund is Constitutionally-protected by the First
Amendment, as applied to the states by the Fourteenth Amendment, the burden of the complainant
and the Commission is extremely high when seeking to regulate the legitimate issue advocacy speech of
a tax-exempt social welfare entity such as the Fund. That burden remains unmet.



As we have discussed over the last few months, the Fund is prepared to enter into a good-faith
conciliation effort with the Commission so as to put this matter behind us and allow the Fund to
terminate its activities by the close of its tax year on December 31, 2014 and file a terminating Form 990
(the Informational Return) with the Internal Revenue Service thereafter. The Fund has neither raised
nor expended any financial resources since the end of August of this year. Because of the publicity
generated by the complainant following the filing of these complaints, there is absolutely no prospect of
the Fund being able to obtain additional donations going forward. As we have also discussed, funds
remaining available to the Fund from prior donations are extremely limited at this point. Additional
expenses incurred by counsel in bringing this matter to a mutually agreeable conclusion simply serve to
further deplete the Fund’s remaining resources. It is in that context that | would seek the cooperation of
the Commission in framing a draft conciliation agreement for my review. As | have also discussed with
you, any such conciliation agreement that is suitable to the Commission must also be agreed to by the
Arizona Attorney General’s Office so as to preclude the necessity of the Fund reaching an agreement
with the Commission only to find that the Office of the Attorney General opposes that agreement.

In that context, | would like the record before the Commission to reflect the fact that | wrote to
the State Elections Director on September 17, 2014 (a copy of which was provided to your office on that
date) to point out that the private attorney retained by Maricopa County (Jeffrey Messing) to render
findings of fact and law regarding the complaint of the Ducey committee filed with the Secretary of
State’s Office utterly failed in his obligation to allow the Fund timely notice and the right to respond to
the complaint he was retained to review by the County. That obligation is required by the “due process”
clause of the Fifth Amendment as applied to the states by the Fourteenth Amendment to the U.S.
Constitution. | also note for the record that notwithstanding the Constitutional “due process” challenge
raised in my letter of September 17, 2014, the State Elections Director referred the compromised
findings of fact and law of Mr. Messing to the office of the Attorney General on a date unknown to me.
The record should further reflect that since that referral, the Office of the Attorney General has not
contacted me nor sought to explain exactly why that Office intends to rely upon the challenged findings
of fact and law referred to it by the State Elections Director.

Should the Commission entertain my proposal to conduct a good-faith negotiation that would
lead to a mutually agreeable conciliation agreement between the Commission, the Attorney General’s
Office and the Fund, please feel free to apprise me of the Commission’s determination at the earliest
possible date.

With best wishes,

Sincerely,

William B. Canfield Il
Counsel to the Arizona Future Fund
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In the Maiter of:

Arizena Future Fund, Respondent

STATE OF ARIZONA

CITIZENS CLEAN ELECTIONS COMMISSION

MUR Nos. 14-014
CONCILIATION AGREEMENT

Pursuant to ARS § 16-957(A), the Cifizens Clean Elections Commission {the *Commission”),

the Arizona Attomey General's Office and Arizona Future Fund {*AFF” or "Respondent”) enter this

Conciliation Agreement (the "Conciliation Agreement”) in the manner described below:

A,

On December 18, 2014, the Commission adopted the Statement of Reasons (the
“Statement of Reasons”), a copy of whict is attached hereto and incorporated herein
by reference, setiing forth the recommendation of the Executive Director that there is
reason to believe Respondent may have committed a violation of the Citizens Clean
Elections Act and Commission rules {collectively, the “Act”).

Any person making independent expenditures must abide by the Clean Elections Act
and Rules and the Commission has authority to enforce the Act and Rules pursuant to
A.R.S. § 16-956(A)(7), including penalties that apply for failure fo file reports.
Respondent made independent expenditures and fited no reports,

The Arizona Secretary of State issued a reasonable cause notice to Respondent
conciudingbihere was reason {o believe Respondent violated A.R.S. §§ 16-

914.02(A)(1); -914.02(F) and -914.02(K), and other applicable statutes.

Conciliation Agreement - |

-y
id

O




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

WHEREFORE,

matter:

This Conciliatton Agresment concludes the Commission's enforcement proceeding
respecting the facts outlined in the attached Statement of Reasons, The Arizona
Attorney General's Offics agress fo be bound by this agreement and concludss its

enforcement based on the Reasonabile Cause notice described above.

the Commission enters the following orders in lieu of any other action regarding this

Respondent acknowledges that pursuant to AR.S. §§ 16-941(D) and -858 any person
who makes an independant expenditure above a threshoid set forth in the Clean
Elections Act must file reports required by the person and that under A.R.S. § 16-
942(B) the statutory penalty for any reporting violation is up to $860 per day up to twice
the valus of the unreported amount,

Respondant acknowiedges the violations set forih in the attached Statement of
Reasons.

Respondent agree 1o seftles this matter for $10,000.00.

To satisfy the debt amount acknowledged above, Respondent shalf pay to the
Commission $10,000.00 by December 26, 2014,

Respondent agrees o file reports accounting for all independent expenditures and
agrees to provide the Commission with receipts verfying the amount of the
expenditures. The receipts shall be provided no later than December 26, 2014 and the
filing shall be completed no later than December 26, 2014. Respondent agrees to
provide Commission staff with any supplemental information necessary in view of
Commission staff to verify their existing, amended or proposed amended reports,

All payments shall be made by check or money order payable to the Citizens Clean
Elections Fund and delivered to the Citizens Clean Elections Commission, 1616 West

Adams, Suite 110, Phoenix, Arizona, 85007,

Conciliation Agreement - 2
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10.

11.

12.

The Commission shall not commence any fegal action against Respondent to collect

the claims so long as they are not in default.

Respondent shall be in default of this Agreement and any outstanding matters will be

forwarded to the Office of the Attorney General upon the occurrance of any of the

following:

a. Respondent fails to make any payment required hereunder within five (5) working
days following the date due;

b. Respondent files a petition under the bankruptey laws or any creditar of the
Respondent files any petition under said laws against the Respondent;

c. Any creditor of Respondent commences a foreclosure action {o forecloss (by suit
or trustee sale) on real property of the Respondent or commences garnishment,
attachment, levy or execution against the Respondent's property; or;

d. Respondent provides false information to the Commission.

In the event of default hereunder, at the option of the Commission, all unpald amounts

hersunder shall be immediately due and payable. In addition, interest shall acerue on

the unpaid balance from the date that the payments become due and payable. Interest

shall accrue at the statutory rate of ten percent (10%) pursuant to A.R.S. § 44-1201(A).

Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to prevent any state agency

which issues licenses for any profession from requiring that the debt in issue be paid in

full before said agency will issue Respondent & new license.

The Commission may waive any condition of default without waiving any other

condition of defauit and without walving its rights to full, timely future performance of

the conditions waived.

In the event legal action is necessary to enforce collection hereunder, Respondent shalf

additionally pay alf costs and expenses of collection, including without limitation,

reasonable attorneys’ fees in an amount equal to thirty-five percent (35%) of monies

recovered,

Conciliation Agreement - 3
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13.

14,

18.

186.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22,

The Attorney General's Office has exercised its discretion and conciuded not to take
additional enforcement actions agalnst Respondent beyond this Concliiation
Agreament.

Respondent acknowledges that all obligations payable pursuant to this Agreement
constitute a fine, penalty, or forfeiture payable to and for the benefit of a governmental
unit, and not compensation for actual pecuniary loss; and that pursuant to 11 USC §
5§23 such obligations are not subject to discharge in bankruptcy.

This Agreement shall be construed under the laws of the State of Arizona.

In the event that any paragraph or provision hereof shall be ruled unenforceable, all
other provisions hereof shall be unaffected thereby.

This Agreement shall constitute the entire agreement between the parties regarding the
subject matter. This Agreement shall not be modified or amended except in a wiiting
signed by all parties hereto.

This Agreement shall not be subject to assignment.

No delay, omission or faflure by the Commission to exercise any right or power
hereunder shall be construed to be a waiver or consent of any breach of any of the
terms of this Agreement by the Respondent,

Respondent has obtained Indepsndent fegal advice in connection with the execution of
this Agreement or have freely chosen not to do so. Any rule construing this Agreement
against the drafter is inapplicable and is waived.

This Agreement shall be veid unless executed by the Respondent and delivered fo the
Cormmission not later than December 19, 2014.

All proceadings commenced by the Commission In this matter will bs terminated and
the malter closed upon receipt of the final payment of the civil penalty and compliance
with the other terms set forth in this Agreement. The Arizona Attorney General's Office
agrees to conclude any enforcement matter pending from the Reasonable Cause

notice identified in the recltals and be bound by this Agresment.
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Dated this ®  day of December, 2014.

ey A

Thomas M. Collins, Executive Direclor
Cltlmps Clean E @g‘tzons/Commrssmn

By: 7 T2 B «_/éc“%/fi/
zPauta 8. Bickett, Chief Counsel, Civit Appeals
Ajizona Aikomey General's Office

oy: [ %Q&{?{/{/

Hill Canfield for AFF, Responden
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